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I. Key Entity Information

Backgrcutrd informrtioo

Elwak Water and SeweraSe Company Limited (Elwasco) was established by the companies Acl of
Parliament on 23'd ofApriltwo lhousand and twenty (2020). Elwasco is r€pres€nted by the Bo.rd of
Diectors and the ChiefExecutive Omcer who are responsible for the general policy and strategic
direction ofELWASCO. Elwasco is dorniciled in Kenya and is based in Elwak Municipalily,
Mandera County.

PriDcipal Activitics
To provide and distribute a constant supply ofwater for commercial, industrial and dorn€stic
purposes wilhin thejurisdiction of Elwak Municipality.
To be responsible for the provision and maintenance ofwater and sewerage services within the
jurisdiction of Elwak Municipality.

Dirrectors

The Directors who served ELWASCO during the year/period were as follows:
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Mrs Miriam Maalim Issacckow
Mrs Nasra Adan Maalim
Mr Mohamed Adan lssack
Mr Mohamedrashid Haj i
Mr Abdikadir Mohamed
Mr Ahmed Adan
Mr Suleiman Ibrahim Roba

- Deputy Chairperson
- Board Member
- Board Member
- Board Member
- Board Member
- Board Member
- Chief Executive Officer

Registered Ollicer

ELWASCO Buildings, Next to Elwak Municip6lity Head Quarter
EL Golicha Road
P.O. Box 61 - 70301
Elwalq Mandera County,
KENYA

Corporete Heedquarlers

ELWASCO Buildings, Next to Elwak Municipality Head Quaner
P.O. Box 6l - ?0301
Elwak, Mandera County,
KENYA

Corpomle Contrcls

T elephone, (+25 4) 7 26296944
E-mail: info@elwasco.co.ke
Website: www.elwasco.co ke
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Corporate Batrkers

Equiry Bank Limited
Mandera Branch

P.O. Box 60000
Mandera, Kenya

lndependent Auditors

Auditor-General
office ofauditor General
Anniversary Towers, Universily way
P.O. Box 30084
GOP 00100
Nairobi, Kenya

Principal [-€gel Adrisers

The Attorney General
State Law Office
Hanmb€e Avenue
P.O. Box 401l2
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya



I. THE BOARD O}'DIRECToRS

Deputy Chairperson

2. Mrs Nasra Adan Maalim Board Member

3. Mr Mohamed Adan Issack Board Member

4. Mr Mohamedrashid Haji Board Membcr

5. Mr Abdikadir Tache Board Member

6. Mr Ahmed Adan Board Member

7. Mr Suleiman lbrahim Roba Ex-official Member and CEo Elwasco

l. Mrs Miriam Maalim Issacckow



II. Management Team

l. Mr. lssack Adan Depuly Chief Execulive Ofticer

2. Issa Ahmed Ali Head of Financial Services

3. Mohamednoor Issack Procuremenl Manager

4. Alinoor Mohamed Human Resource Manager



lII. ChrirmaD'sStctement

Elwak water and Sewerage Company Limited faced exlrern€ difficulties in its operation. This is due
lo largely fauhy water systems that were handed over to us at start ofoperations- The company,
during th€ year achieved a goalofstaffeslablishment- The county Government ofMandera seconded
some oftheir staffs to help stan the operaiions ofthe company.

ELWASCO also recruited some casuals to effeclively deliver s€rvices to the confirunity. The casuals
were initially contracted on short term contracts ofone year. The board will however, debate on
whether to extend the length ofthc contracts.

The company faced many challenges during lhe firsl year ofopera!ion. we €xperi.nced security
lhrcat to our staffs and assets from the criminals operaling near the borderto Somalia. They have on
many occasion, stalled our operalion by making roads impassable.

ELWASCO's main challenge has been lack offunds. The company inherited an old water syslem
which n€eded complete overhaul. The team had to do with a fauhy waler system with no funds to
rectiry or pul in place a new one.

Ag Chairperson ofthe Board Date 300612.023

During the sarne period, the company initiated lhe process of Licensing to enable the Company
function within th€ walls ofthe law. The company achieved a mileston€ within months ofoperations,
when it received its License. ELWASCO b€came the first lo €ver receive Licensing while less than a
year old.

The company also experienced large scale breakdown ofold G€nerators and counlless pipe bursts
which contributed to incapacitation in terms ofprovidinS water to lhe community.

,.1.:.. ..... --- .. "" ---- ' " '



ry. Report of ih. Chicf Exccuaive OI[c.r
ELWASCO faced extreme difficuhies in its operation during lhe year. This is due to prolonged

severe draughl which caused frequent syst€m break down and reducing water levels in our
boreholes. largely faulty water systems thal were handed over to us at start ofoPerations.

The ELWASCO also recruited some casuals to effeclively deliver services to the community. The
casuals were handed renewable short term contracts ofone year.

The company faced many challenges during the firsl year ofoperation. We experienced s€curity
lhrcal to our slaffs and assets fiom the criminals op€rating near the border to Somalia. They have on

many occasion, stalled our operation by making roads impasssble.

The company also experienced large scale breakdown ofold Gen€rators and countless pipe bursts
which contributed to incapacitalion in lcrms ofproviding water to the communily.

ELWASCO's main challenge has been lack offunds. The company inherited an old water system

which needed complete overhaul. The team had to do with a faulty water system with no funds to
rectiry or put in place a new one.



V. Slatement ofPerformaoce Agrinst Predetcrmincd Objectiycs forFY 2022n023

Seclion 8l Subsection 2 (f) ofthe Public Finance ManaSement Act, 2012 requies the accounting
omcer to include in the financial slatement, a statement of the Coumty govemment entity's
performance against predetermined objectives.
Elwak Water and Srwerage Company Limited has two strategic pillars and objectives within its
Straregic Plan for the Fy 202012021- 202412025.
ELWASCO develops its annual work plans based on the below pillars. Assessment ofthe Board's
performance against its annual work plan is done on a qua(erly basis.
During202212023 financial year, rhe Company implemented its third yea( o12020/21 to 2024/25
Strategic Plan via the annual Performance Contract and the work plan. Overall, the implementation
achievement ofthe Slrategic Plan during the 2023124 FY is esrimated as 55o% as detailed in rhe table
trlow summarized per the seven strategic themes. The major performance driving factors included
adequate planninS and implementation ofihe various projects. This achievement was also realized
du€ to lhe suppori iiom County gov€rnment in the mitigalion aSainst the adverse elfects ofdraught.

St€wardship Effccts of draugh, which hugely
ed revenue collection.

2020121 - 2024125
Themes

Estirnaled
lmplementation during
2022/23 FY

OverallRernarks

Customer Focus and Slakeholdcr
Engagemenl

Affecled by the effecls of draughr

Govcmance and In$itutional
Capacity Developmcnt

66.h This p€rformance *Es largcly
Affectcd by financial corslraints

Inforrnation & Communication Technology
(lCT) and other Suppon Infrastructure

15% -Duc lo reduclion ofrevenue as r6ult
of draught



I Implementation Estimalcs 55oto Ovcrall, the Strategic plan
imDlementation during the reportiDg
period was affecred by draught
espccially due to the low revenue
collcction.

The company's €xp€ndilure has mainly been on Repair, Mainlenance and operation costs. The

Company is running on deficit as our Revenue systems are not yet at its peal. ELWASCO is sorting
oul Crants from lhe WSTF and other such entities. The County Govemment Grant is solely not
enough. The Company is looking to improve its revenues gmdually.

CEO Date 3.0/.06120-23



VI. CorporateGovernanceStaleme[t

INTRODUCTION

The responsibility for the control and managemenl ofthe Company is divided between the Board of
DLectors (supported by its Committees) and ChiefExecutive Officer.

GENER.4L JIIEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board ofDirectors ofELWASCO exercise their decision-making power at lhe Company's Board
meetings. The rights and the duties ofthe Board Meeting are defined in the Mwongozo code and in
the Public Finance Acts. The Board h6d four sittings throughout lhe year.

An Extraordinary Ceneral Meeting ("ECM") may be convened by the Board *hen they consider h

necessary or when requted by law

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition ofthe Bo6rd consists ofa minimum ofeight (8) memb€rs

The dulies ofthe Board are those specified in lhe Companies Act, accordinS to which the Board is

responsible for overseeing that the management and operations, and the supervision ofaccounting
and financial matters ofthe Company are appropriately organised. The Anicles ofthe Company do

not define olher duties for lhe Board. The Board has aulhority to act in all matters not reservcd by
law. The Board meets as often as n€cessary to properly fulfil its duties. The Board decides well in
sdvance on its meeting schedule and additional meetings are arranged when necessary.
The Board evaluales its performance and working methods annually.

BOARD CHARTER.

The Board has adopted for ilselfa Charter. According to the Chaner, apan from the statutory duties
the main tasks ofBoard are:

i. Approval ofthe straregic goals and dtection .

ii- Appro va I of strrtegically importanl or rnajor acquisitions and divestments -

iii. Business control including, smong othcrs, approvals ofcontrol policies, and busincss rnatters
in accordance with the Company's Autho.ities Policy & Approval Matrix

iv. Approvalofthe business organisation structure '

v. Appointme ofthe CEO
vi. Approval ofthe appointrrents oflhe top manag€ment
vii. Financialcontrol.
viii. Budgels
ix. Approva I of princ iple s ofrisk managemcnl and intemal conlrol
x. Appointrn€nt ofthe ChiefAudit Executive ard approvaloflhe Internal Audit Charter
xi. Appointments to the Board Conunittees and revi€w ofthe reports ofthe Board Committe€s

x

OPERATIONS OF THE BOARD.



COMMITTEES OF TIIE BOARD

The Bo8rd constituted Committ€e which compris€s of
i. Finance Committee
ii. Human Resource Committee
iii. Audit Committee
iv. Others

VlI. M.n.gement DiscussioD and Anelysis

ELWASCO'S linsncisls xre ss slImmarised belorr

Total revenue for the year (all source)

Total expendilure €xpenses

Net profit before tax

Pro6a .ft.r t.!

Dillercnce

The Company experienced a Net Loss of Kshs. 1,146,071.00 as at 30'r June 2023. This was due to
high op€ralion cost and deficit revenue target and collections.

Th€ company unde(ook repat and mainlenance ofpipes, procurement ofwater pumps, meters
among othcrs to hiShlight a key investrtnl.

The Company faced real threats in terms ofsecurty from the boardn with Sonulia. Mosl of
ELWASCO'S assets includinS six boreholes are al ihe border. This has som€times par6lysed lhe
op€ralions of the company.
Thcre .Ie bandits alound the Municipality who vandalise our pipes consistently. The security officers
have not b€en helpful in curbing these issues.

ELWASCO has c&sual employees. Th€ Company contribules Kshs.200 as NsSF on behalfofthe
casuals. The compan!, is also obligated to contribute an amount towards NHIF as contribulion Fom
deduction of casual payroll.

I12,620,409.00

I I Q-98L1-65-00

t,631,244.00

r^L46JlZUl0



2. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT/SUSTAINABILITY
REPORTINC

ELWASCO €xists to transform lives. This is our purpose; the driving force behind everlthing we do
Il's what guides us to deliver our strategy, which is founded on ELWASCO'S pillars: puning lhe
customer first, delivering relevanl goods and services, and improvinS operationalexcellence. Below
is a briefhighlight ofour 6chievements in each pillar

i. Susaaitrrbility strates/ strd pmtile -
The company is experiencing high operation cost as a resuh ofhigh Fuel usage at our pump

stalions. The company pumps waler fiom a village more than 351(M from Elwak
Municipality. We are currently using around 1000L ofDiesel daily to pump and providc
water to our clients. This is not suslainable in the long run.

Thc company has put in place a plan to solarize all our boreholes- There is a plan to phase out
use ofCenerators at our pump station within the first five years ofoperation so as to cut cost
on fuel.

Envimr menlal performarce
The company subsidized water for Elwak Municipality who have undenaken tree planting
projects. This is a contribution fiom ELWASCO in ensuring greener, cleaner and attractive
environmenl.
The company has also planted over two thousand trees in its frsl €ight month ofoperation.
The company is also planning to set up waste disposaland treatm€nt site to abate in avoiding
environmental degradalion. The site identification process will be iniliated in the Financial
Year 2023/2024

iii. Employcc w.lf{re

The Company does not currently employ highly skilled employe€s. The recruitmenl process

mainly involves casuals who are given sho( term contracl. Howev€r, the company has

seconded slafTfrom Mandera County Govemment. ELWASCO has prioritised capacity
building of slaff in the financial year.

Safely gears have been provided to casual employees attached to lhe technical departmenl or
those involved in hard and physically demanding work.

ELWASCO has casusl employees. The Company contributes Kshs.200 as NSSF on behalfof
the casuals. The company is also obligaled to contribut€ an amount towards NHIF as

contribulion fiom deduction ofcasual payroll.

The company has developed a policy on safety in line with occupational safety and health acl
012001 .

llt
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iv. Msrket pLce prrctices-
The organisation should outline its effons to:

a) Th€ company being the sole provirer offwater in the regioG has litlle comp€tition in
the area. ELWASCO is a corruption free zone, with signs displayinS the same

stationed at the offices.
b) The company has b€en exemplary in settling conlracls w(h suppliers, offen paying

lhem in good time-
c) Marketing and advertisement nujotly involve physical meeting with the residents in

what thc company refers to Public Participalion programs. The
d) ELWASCO has set up an office to handle customer complaints There is also a

compliant and compliment box which is checked daily and reviewed for 6ction.

v. ComeunityEtrgrgeDeDt!-
The Company s€1 up a program to feed and car€ for stray snimals such as Donkcys during lhis
draughl season. The company plans to enSage with the communily more in the coming years.



VIII. Reporl Ofthe Directors

The Directors submit their repo( togelher whh lhe audited hnancial statem€nls for the year ended

June 30. 2023 which show the state ofELWASCO's affairs.

Principal activities

To provide and distribute a conslant supply ofw.ter for commercial, industrial and domestic
purposes within thejurisdiction of Elwak Municipality.
To be responsible for the provision and mainten6nce ofwater and sewerage services within the
jurisdiction of Elwak Municipality.

Resulls

The results ofELWASCO for the year €nded June 30, 2023 are sel out on page l. Below is summary
ofthe profit or loss made during the year.

Total revenue for lhe year (all source) l12,620,409.00

rrcBil^I6l-00Total expenditure expenses

Net profit before tax

Pmlit .fter tat

t,637,244.00

L.l46JZUl0

Dividends

The shareholders agreed lhat ther€ is so divilends to be shared for the Financial year

Dirrctors

The memb€rs ofthe Board ofDirectors who served during the year are shown on page lll.
Auditors
The Aud itor General is responsible for the statutory ald it ofthe ELWASCO in accordance wilh Article
229 ofthe Constiturion of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015 or Ceiified Public Accountants were
nominated by the Audilor General to carry out the aud it of ELWASCO for the yearlperiod ended June
30,2023 in accordance to s€ction 23 ofthe Public Audit Acl, 2015 which empowers lhe Alditor
Ceneral lo appoint an auditor to audit on his behall

Bv Order ofthe Board

Sumeya Mohamed
Corporate Secrctary
Elwak
Datet 39,95.2Q?1
Priocipalactivities



To provide and distribute a conslant supply ofsafe and sufficienl water for commercial, industrial

and domeslic purposes within the jurisdiction ofElwak Municipalily.
To be responsible for the provision and maintenance ofwaler and sewerag€ services wilhin the
jurisdiction of Elwak Municipalhy.

\\



i) Auditorl

The Auditor General is responsible for the ststutory audit ofthe Company in accordance with Article

229 oflhe L'onstiturion of Kenya and lhe Public Audit Act 2015 were nominaled by rhe Auditor

Generalto carry out the audit ofthe Company for the yearlperiod ended June 30, 2023, in accordance

to section 23 ofthe Public Audit Act, 2015 which empowers th€ Auditor General to sppoint an

auditor to audit on his beh.lf.

By Order ofthe Board

Name: Suleiman lbrahinl.Roba

Signature

Date: 30106/2023

Secretarv to the Board



IX. Stat.ment of Dircctor3' Responsibilities

Section 8l ofth€ Public Finance Management Act,2012 and section l4 ofthe State Corporations
Act, requfe the Dteclors to prepare financial statements in respect ofELWASCO, which give a true

and fair view ofthe slate ofaflairs oflhe company al tlE end oflh€ financialyear/period and lhe
operating resulls ofthe company ficr lhat yearlperiod. The Directors are also required to ensure that
the ELWASCO keeps proper accounling records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the

financi6lposition ofthe company. The Directors are 6lso responsibl€ for safeguaading lhe assels of
ELWASCO,

The Directors 6re responsible for the prepamlion and presentation ofthe company's financial
staternents, which give a true and fair view ofthe stale ofaffairs ofELWASCO for and as al the end of
lhe financial year (period) ended on June 30, 2022. This responsibility includes: (i) rnaintaining
adequate financial mana8ement arrangements and ensuring thal lhese conlinue to b€ effective
throughout lhe reporting period; (ii) mainlaining proper accounting records, which disclose with
reasonable accuracy al any time lhe financial position ofELWASCO; (iij) designing, implem€nting
and maintaining internal controls rel€vant to the preparation and fair ptesenlation ofthe financial
statements, and ensuring that they are fiee fiom material misslat€menls, whether due to error or
fraud; (iv) safeguarding the assets ofthe company; (v) selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and (vi) nraking accounling estimates that are reasonable in the ctcumslances.

The Directors responsibility for ELWASCO'S financial slaternents, which have been prepared using

appropriate accounting policies supponed by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, in

conformity with Intemational Financial Reporting Slandsrds (IFRS), and in the manner required by the

PFM Act, 2012 and (h€ State Corpomtions Act). The Dlectors are ofthe opinion thal ELWASCO'S
financial statements give a true and fat view oflhe stale ofcompany's lransactions during the financial
year €nded June 30, 2022, and oflhe company's financial position as at thal date. The Directors further
confirm the completeness oflhe accounting records maintained for ELWASCO, which have been

relied upon in the preparation ofthe company's financial stalements as well as the adeqlacy ofthe
systems of intemal fi nancial control.

Nothing has come to lhe atlention ofthe Directors to indicate that ELWASCO will not remarn a going
concern for al least the next twelve months from the date ofthis stalern€nt.

Approval of the financial statements

Elwal Water and Sewerage Company Limited's financial statements were approved by the Board on

30'h Jutre 2023 and signed on its behalfby:

Ag Chairperson ofthe Board ChiefExecutive olficer



Elwek Wrter end Seremge Comprtry Ltd
Atroual Report rtrd Fincncial Sl.tem.rts for tbe yerr endcd June 30, 2023

Approvsl of lhe fi nrncial slatements

The company financial statements were approved by the Board on 30tr June 2023 and signed on its

behalfby:

Signoture ....'.... .."'
Ag Cheirpenon of the Borrd

Signalurr .............

ChicfExecutiv€ Omcer

x\ lll



Teleohone: +)(a{!o) 12r4ooo

f'"r,'*o@o"S*".r".e..."
Website: www.oagkenya.go.ke

REPUBLIC OF KENYA

OFf I(E OF THE AUDlroR.GEI{ERAI.

Enhon c i ry A t coun t uhi I i 
^

H EADqUARIERS
Annive6ary Towers

Monrovla street
P.O. Box 3oo84{oroo

NAIROBI

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON ELWAK WATER AND SEWERAGE
COMPANY LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the linancial slatements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
complianc€ with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whelher public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner lo ensure the Governmenl
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on the Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds lo lhe effecliveness of the governance structure, risk
managemenl environment and internal controls, developed and implemented by those
charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance syslems are properly designed and were working effectively in the rinancial
year under review.

The three parts of lhe report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilaties of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts ol
the report when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Adverse Opinion

I have audited the accompanying tinancial statements of Elwak Water and Sewerage
Company Limited set out on pages 1 to 39, which comprise of the statement of financial
position as at 30 June, 2023 and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows and statement of
comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended and a summary of

Repo ofthe Audno.-Genetol on El,,ol ttatet ond Sereruge Conpo,ry' Li itedlor the yeor ended 30June,2023



significant accounting policies and other explanatory informalion in accordance with the
provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of lhe Public Audit
Act, 2015. I have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of my
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, because of the significance of the matters discussed in the Basis for
Adverse Opinion section of my report, the financial statements do not present fairly, the
financial position of Elwak Water and Sewerage Company Limited as at 30 June, 2023
and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance
with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards (Accrual Basis) and do not comply with
the Water Act, 2016, the Companies Act, 2015 and the Public Finance Management
Acl,2012.

Basis for Adverse Opinion

l. Presentation and Disclosuro in the Financial Statsments

The table of contents in the financial slatements did not include acronyms and glossary
of terms as required by the Annual Financial Reporting Template (evised June, 2023).
ln addition, passport size photographs and key professional/academic qualifications for
the Board Members and the Management leam were not included in the relevant sections
of the financial statements.

ln lhe circumstances, the financial statements were not presented in the format
prescribed in the Annual Financial Reporting Template (revised June, 2023).

2. Going Concern

The statement of financial position reflects current assets of Kshs.12,094,812 against
lotal current liabilities of Kshs.19,572,518, resulting to negative working capital of
Kshs.7,477,706. ln addition, out of the total revenue of Kshs. 112,620,409 reported in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the Company generated only
Kshs.1,000,023 representing 10lo of the total revenue. Staff costs for the permanent
employees amounting to Kshs.26,380,200 was paid by the County Executive.

ln the circumstances, the Company is technically insolvent and may not be able to meet
its current obligations as and when they fall due and it may continue to depend on support
from the County Government of Mandera and creditors.

3. lnaccuracies in the Statemsnt of Protit or Loss and Other Comprehonsive
lncome

The statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income reflects grants income
of Kshs.85,240,186. As reflected in Note 7 to the financial statements, granls amounting
to Kshs.78,758,464 were recognized in the statement of changes in equity as capital fund.
The amount of grants recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive was therefore overstated.

ln lhe circumstances, the accuracy of total revenue of Kshs.1 12,620,409 and profit after
taxation of Kshs.'1,146,071 could not be confirmed.

a
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4. lnaccuracies in the Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Changes
in Equity

The statement of financial position reflects capital grants balance of Kshs.78,758,464 as
at 30 June, 2023. However, the statement of changes in equity reflects capital grants
balance of Kshs.'126,524,960 resulting in unreconciled variance of Kshs.47,766,496. ln
addition, the statement of changes in equity reflects profit for the year of Kshs.1,'146,071
under retained earnings as capital grants received during the year.

ln the circumstances, it was not possible to confirm the accuracy of capital grants of
Kshs.78,758,464 and Kshs.126,524,960 presented in the statement of financial position
and the statement of changes in equity respectively.

5. Unsupported Property, Plant and Equipment

The statement of financial position reflects net book value for property, plant and
equipment of Kshs.78,758,464 as at 30 June, 2023 and as disclosed in Note 15 to the
financial statements. However, the accumulated depreciation as at 1 July, 2022lot the
various classes of assets was not disclosed. ln addition, the approved depreciation rates
applied on depreciation of assets were not disclosed. Further the net book values for the
prior year were not disclosed in Note 15 as required.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy of property, plant and equipment of Kshs.78,758,464
could not be confirmed.

6. Unsupported Trade and Other Payables

The statement of financial position reflects trade and other payables balance of
Kshs.19,572,518 However, Management did not provide payment vouchers, supporting
documents and analysis to support the balance. ln addition, aging analysis for the
payables was not included in Note 20 to the financial statements.

ln lhe circumstances, the accuracy of the trade and other payables balance of
Kshs.'19,572,518 could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSA|s). I am independent of the Elwak Water and Sewerage Company
Limited Management in accordance with ISSAI '130 on the Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other
ethical requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I

believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my adverse opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

Under-Collection of Revenue

The statement of proflt or loss and other comprehensive income reflects operating
revenue from water sales for the year of Kshs.1,000,023. However, the actual collection
during the year was only Kshs.195,857 resulting in an under-collection of Kshs.804,'166
or 80% of the projected revenue. Management did not provide details on measures put
in place to address the undesirable under-collection of revenue.



Further, it was observed that the operating revenue for the Company declined sharply
from Kshs.6,925,300 reported in the previous financial year to Kshs.1,000,023 reported
in the current flnancial year. Although Management explained that the decline was as a
result of a directive by the County Government of Mandera not to bill its customers during
the year, no justification for the directive was provided.

My opinion is however, not modified in respect of the above matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter

Unresolved Prior Year Matters

ln the audit of the previous year, several issues were raised under Report on Financial
Statements, Report on LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources and
Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance.
However, Management indicated to have resolved only two (2) issues out of a total of
eighteen ('18) issues reported contrary to The National Treasury Circular AG.3/884/0L.ll
(27) dated I May, 2023.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, because of the significance of the
matters discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion and Basis for Conclusion on
Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources sections of my report, based
on the audit procedures pedormed, lconfirm that public resources have not been applied
laMully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Engagement of Casual Workers for Prolonged Duration

lncluded in the staff costs of Kshs.40,285,550 disclosed under Note 10 to the financial
statements was an expenditure on wages for casual workers of Kshs.1 3,734,350. Review
of casuals payroll revealed that there were seventy-three (73) casual workers who were
engaged for more than three (3) continuous months contrary to Section 37(1Xa) & (b) of
the Employment Act, 2007 which provides that where a casual employee works for a
period or a number of continuous working days which amount in the aggregate to the
equivalent of not less than one month or performs work which cannot reasonably be
expected to be completed within a period or a number of working days amounting in the
aggregate to the equivalent of three months or more, the contract of service of the casual
employee shall be deemed to be one where wages are paid monthly. The contracts of
the casuals were renewed after every three (3) months.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

Repo4 .,f the Au.lilor-Cenerul on Ehak t+'atet ond Ssseruge ('onpory Limited fot the yeat en.lcd 30 June, 2023
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2. Use of Unapproved Water Tariffs

According to the records provided for audit, the Company billed its customers based on
a rate of Kshs.240 per cubic meter for soft water and Kshs.500 for hard water. However,
the tariffs were not approved by Water Services Regulatory Board (WASREB). Further,
l\,lanagement did not seek approval from the Water Services Regulatory Board
(WASREB) for regular tariff adjustment and the Company continued to bill water
consumers using unapproved water tariffs. This was contrary to Section 72(1)(b) of the
Water Act, 20'16 which states that the powers and functions of the Regulatory Board shall
be to evaluate and recommend water and sewerage tariffs to the County water service
providers and approve the imposition of such tariffs in line with consumer protection
standards.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

3. Non-Revenue Water (NRW)

During the year under review, the Company estimated its annual water production at
4,038,858 M'.r. However, the Company did not have data on the volume of water billed
to customers.

ln the circumstances, it was not possible to determine the level of Non-Revenue Water
and the operational efficiency of the Company could not be determined.

4. Non-Compliance with Service Level Agreement on Personnel Cost

According to Note 10 to the financial statements, total staff cost for the year under review
was Kshs.40,285,550 against total water revenue of Kshs.1,000,023 for the same period.
This implies that personnel cost as a percentage of water revenue was 4,0287o.

ln the circumstances, the Company exceeded the limit of 40% set by Water Services
Regulatory Board which may compromise the sustainability of the Company.

5. Failure to Deduct Tax on Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment

The statement of financial position reflects net book value of Kshs.78,758,464 for
property, plant and equipment as at 30 J une,2023. lncluded in the balance is an amount
in respect of additions to property, plant and equipment of Kshs.27,672,560 relating to
installation of submersible pumps and assorted water items. Examination of payment
vouchers and other relevant documents revealed that payments totalling to
Kshs.22,500,000 were made without deducting 6% VAT on supplies and 3% withholding
VAT on payments for works.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSAl) 4000. The standard requires that I comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether the
activities. financial transactions and information reflected in the financial slatements
comply, in all material respects, with the authorities that govern them. I believe that the
audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
conclusion.

Repo ofthe Auditor-Generul on Elwok Watet ond Set)erage Company Limite.lfor the yeu en.led 30 June, 2021
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REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS. RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, because of the significance
of the matters discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion and Report on Effectiveness of
lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance sections of my report, based on the
audit procedures performed, I confirm that internal controls, risk management and
governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

'1. Lack of Debt Management and Bad Debt Policies

The statement of financial position and as disclosed in Note 12 to the financial statements
reflects trade and other receivables balance of Kshs.804,166. lt was, however, noted that
the Company did not have a debt management policy and a policy on bad and doubtful
debts. Further, aging analysis was not prepared to facilitate monitoring of receivables and
cash flow forecasting.

ln the circumstances, the recoverability of the full amount of receivables balance of
Kshs.804,166 could not be confirmed.

2. Lack of Fixed Asset Register

The statement of financial position reflects property, plant and equipment of
Kshs.78,758,464 and as disclosed under Note 15 to the financial statements which
includes buildings, plant and machinery, computers and furniture and fittings. However,
the Company did not maintain an asset register as required.

ln the circumstances, it was not possible to confirm the existence of effective internal
controls on management of fixed assets.

3. Failure to Establish an lnternal Audit Unit and Audit Committee

The Company operated without an audit committee and an audit department as required
by Regulation 167 of the Public Finance Management (County Governments)
Regulations, 2015 which requires each county government entity to establish an audit
committee which shall support the accounting officers with regard to their responsibilities
for issues of risk, control and governance and associated assurance and also to follow
up on the implementation of the recommendations of internal and external auditors.

ln the circumstances, it was not possible to confirm existence of effective internal controls,
risk management and governance structures in the Company.

4. Lack of lnformation Technology lnternal Controls

Review of the Company's lnformation Technology (lT) internal controls and risk
management processes revealed that the Company did not have an lT strategy
committee and lT steering committee. ln addition, policies in respect of physical access
to lT environments were not place.

Repoa of he Auditor-Gene,A o;Eli;k watia"d Se*e,'ge Conpanyrlimitedfur iEe yeat ina,a i0 Junne, nli
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Further, the Company did not have disaster management and recovery policies in place
including fire suppression systems. The Company did not have business continuity plan
and lT continuity plan including an off-site back-up plan.

Lack of effective lnformation Technology internal controls may result to huge loses in
case of occurrence of disaster.

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit Institutions (lSSAls) 23'15 and 2330. The standards require that lplan and perform
the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective processes and systems of internal
controls, risk management and overall governance were operating effectively, in all
material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sutficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REOUIREMENTS

As required by the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015, I report based on my audit, that;

i. I have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit,

ii. ln my opinion, adequate accounting records have been kept by the Company, so far
as appears from the examination of those records; and,

iii. The Company's financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting
records.

Responsibilities of Management and lhe Board of Directors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards and for
maintaining effective internal controls as the Management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
controls, risk management and governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the applicable basis of accounting unless the
Management is aware of the intention to liquidate the Company or cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit
Act, 2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities. financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
comply with the authorities which govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporling
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with

Repo of the Altditor-Oenerul on El\''ak Watet ond Sewerage Conpany Linited lot the yeat ended )0 Ju4 202 3
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relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the flnancial slatements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of lhe Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1Xa) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with A(icle 229(7) of the Constitution. l\,ly consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
Company's policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I alsol

. ldentify and assess the risks o, material misstatement oI the flnancial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
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basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatemenl resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override ol internal controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimales and related disclosures made by the Management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. lf I conclude lhat a material uncertainty exists,
I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufflcient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Company to express an opinion on the financial statements.

. Perform such other procedures as lconsider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal controls that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and where
applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA CBS
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Na irobi

08 January , 2024

Repo ;fthe Auditor-Gen tal on Elwok woter and S.'berase Conpary Linit.dfu rhe yeor ended 30 June, 2023



Elw.k Wrter and Serrersge Compatry Ltd.
Annual Reporl and Financial Stslements for the year ended June 30, 2023

XI. Strtemedt Of Prorit or Loas & Otbcr Comprchersive Income For The Year Ended 30 Jrn.

2023.

Rerenue
1,000,023 6.925,300Operating Revenue

85,240,r86 75,000,0001Grants Income

26,380,200 12,000,000In-kind contribution

09Other Income

n2.620..109 9J.925J00Tol.l Revenue

Expenses
16,77 5,462t0 40,285,550SlaffCosts
67,858,39061,51I,r54GeDeral and Operations expenses

0 4,r 56,451t2Board Expenses

194,680 500.000I]Maintenance Expenses

t,{ 8,99t,78 t 8.047.524Depr€ciation snd Arnortizal ion exp€nses

I10.983.165 91.331.A21Toael Expenses

(]Jr2l21J,fi1-244Prolit(Loss) Before Texrtion

Llrl6J)Zl {3.{ 12.527)Profil/(l,oss) After Trt'tion- 30Yo

LL16.02r o! 2l2llTotal Comprehensive lncome For The Ycar
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Eh,vsk Wster sod Scwerage CoDprny Ltd
Annu.l Reporl rnd Financial Slatem€[ls for lhe year ended June 30, 2023

XIl. Statemerr OfFinsncial Position As at 30 June 2023

The financial slatements were approved by the Board on 30'h June 2023 and signed on its b€halfby:

ffi=<
AG Chair Board ofDirectors Head ofFinance & Adm ChiefExecutive Omcer

2

ASSETS

Non-C!rrtnt Assets

l5 78,758,464 60,077,685Property, plant and equipment
60,077,6857lt.7sli..l6{Total Non-Current Assets

Currcnt A$ets
2,762.785Trade and receivable t6 80,1,166

1t,290,646 203,879Bank and cash balances t7
12.09{.812 2,966.664Totel Curr€nt Ass€ts

6,3,1u{-}1990.853.276TOTAL ASSET

EQUITY AIID LIABILITIES

Ccpitsl ard Resenes
[3 100,000 r00,000Ordinary share capilal

47,766,496t5 78,758,4UCapitalgranl
(3,412,s27)11 ,577,7O6',)Retained earnings

71.21i0.758 .11.t53.969Cspital and Reserves

Non-Current Liabilities
Currcnt Liabilities

20 19.572.5 t 8Trade and other payables

19.572.518 18.590380Totsl Currcnt Liebilities

61J44,,1t990^E53rl6TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

18.590.380

I



Elwak Wster and Ser erage Compsny Lld.
Annual Relrort snd FinaIcial StatemeIts for the ] car ended June J0, 202f,

XIII. Statement OfChanges ln Equitv For The Year f,trd€d 30 Jure 2023

Al Jun€ 30, 2022 r00,000 47,766,496 0 0 .17,866,,196

Revaluation gain 0 t) 0 0 0

Transfer of cxc6s d.prccialion
on rcvaluation

0 0 0 0 t)

Deferred tax on excess
deprecial ion

0 0 0 0 0

Fair valu€ adjuslment on quoled 0 0 t) 0

Total comprehensive income 0 0 0 0 0

CapitaL/Development granls
rc.eivcd durinA lhe ycar

0 0 /.8,721,',7',t7) 0 0

Transf.r of
depreciatio amonisation from
capital fund to retaincd eam;nqs

0 0 0 0 0

Dividends paid - 202 I 0 0 0 l) 0

Inlerim dividends paid - 2021 0 0 0 0

Propo6cd fi nal dividends 0 0 0 0

Al Jun.30.2022 100,000 11,166,496 (8,12i,177) 0 39,142,119

Ai Juty l, 2022 100,000 0 0 0 100,000

Issue ofnew share capilal 0 0 0 0 0

Revaluation gain 0 0 0 0 o

Transfcr of cxcess deprcciation
on revalualion

0 0 0 0 0

Deferrcd t&x on exc€ss
depreciation

(l (l 0 0 0

Fair value adjustment on quoted
inv€stmcnts

0 0 0 0

Total conprehensive incom.
CapitaYDevelof,menl grants
received duriDg lhe year

0

78.7 58.464 t.146.071
0

70,227,3{0.s
Transfer of
d€preciatioiramortisation flom
capilal fund to raaincd caminps

0 0 0 0 0

Dividends paid - 2020 tl 0 0 0 0

Interim divid€nds pajd 2021 0 0 0 0 t)

Proposed fi nal dividends 0 0 0 0 0

A.Jun.J0,202l t00.000 126,524,960 (7,577,7O6t 0 I19,017,2511

l

On
rha
cilt ridi

0



Elwak Wrter and Sewerag€ Company Ltd.
Annual Repo rl end Financisl Strtements for the yesr ended June 30, 2023

XIv. Ststemert Ofcash Flows for The Yerr End€d 30 Junc 202J

C.sh Flows Irom Operating Activities
Receipts

1,261,90EUPC VAT contribution- Opcrations account

26,380,200In Kind Conlribution from Mandera County Govemment
4,162,5152l(a) r 95,857Operaling Revenue

2r(b)Non-Operaling Reven!e
75,000,0002l(c) 85,240,t86Grants

I13,078,151 79,162,515Total Receipts

Payments
2r(d) 40,285,550 4,115,462StallCosts

4,r56,4512l (r) 0Board Expenses

51,876,5642l(e) t3,818,594General And Operation Expenses

194,680 500,000Maintenance Expense 2l(s)
(61J0E,477)Not Cssh Fmm/(Used In) Operating Activiti€s (74J18,r24)

Cr3h Flows from IDvestiDg Activities
l5 (27 ,672,560) (2 r,980,914)Purchase OfPropefly, Planr And Equipnenl (PPE)

(21,980,9r4)(21 ,612,560\Nel Crsh From/(Used ln) Investing Activities

I1,086,767 (.r,r26,876)locrease/(Decrease) In Cash And Crsh Equivalents

4J30,?55203,879Cesh And Cash Equiveletrts At Begirning OfYcar

11,290,646 203.879Casb Aod Cash Equivalents At End OfThe Year
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Eh{ek W0ter and Sewerage Compery Ltd.
ADnurl Report rnd Financial Stalements for lhe year ended Junc 30, 2023

XV. Statemcnt Of Comparison of Brdget & Actual Amounts for The Period Erded 30 Jure 2023

Rcvenue Kshs X shs Kshs Kshs Kshs

Opening Balrnce 203-ti79

2.000.000 t.000.000 1,000,023 r95,857 605,800
Crants &om the County
Govemment r85,200,000 ( r 09,959,814) 75.240,t86 85,240,186 (t0,000,000 )

UPC project WSTI- tunding t8,000.000 t8,000,000 1E,000,000 t,261,908 0

Total income 205,200,000 91,240,209 86,901,8J0 605.800

f,xpenses 0 0

Casuals salaries and wages r 5,800,000 I3,200,000 13,905,350.00 13,905,350.00 0

UPC VAT 40% Contribution 1,26 t,908.00 0 1,26t,906.00 r,26t,908.00
0

Kenya Power and l-ighting
Company l,td 1,075,000 975,000 100,000.00 100,000.00

0

3,000,000.00 2,5m,000.00Oil. Fuel and Lubricants 3000.000 0

500,000

Dr6ught M itigation expenses t8,000,000 6,110,000 11,230,000-00 11,230,000.00
0

Dislribution Cost t,500.000 806,0t4 693,986.00 693,986.00
0

Public Participation 250,000 4,850,000.00 4,850,000.00

l)

5,000,000

88t,220.61
Office general supplies and

900,000 0 900,000.00

t8,t19.31

Communicat ion services 500,000 r00,000 400,000.00 400,000.00

MOTOR VEHICLE HIRI] 2,,100,000 r,650,000 750.000.00 750,000.00
0

8,304,700.00 8,304,700.00

0Pernranent staff Training and

travels 10,000,000 r,895,300

250,000 750.000.00 750,000.00
0

Board Expense I,000,000

Security services 1,000,000 0 I.000.000.00 t.000.000.00
0
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f,hvak Water and Sellerage Company Ltd.
Annual Repoi ond Finenciel Stet€menis for the year ended Juoe 30, 2023

Hospitality and Calering
t.500.000 400,000 1,100,000.00 1,100,000.00

0

Oflice Expense 194,680 0 t94,680.00 194.680.00 0

Bank Charg€s 0 0 0 t 6,179 .97 .00 (r

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE EXPENSf

Produclion Cost 35,000,000 r,456,940 28,000,000.00 27,672,560.6 327,440

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 98,r3r,588 76,.t10,62{.00 75,59{,40{.00 8{6.220.00

XVI. Nole3 To th. FiDeDcisl StrlemeDts

l. Gaoenl Irfotmttion

Elwal Water and Sewerage Company Ltd is established by companics act and derives its

authority 6nd accountability from wster Act and olher relevant acts. The Company is wholly

owned by lhe Mandera County Government and is domiciled in Kenya. The Company's principal

activity is provision ofsaf€ and sufficient water to the resllents within Elwak Municipality and its

cnvirons.

For Kenyan Companies Act reporting purposes, lhe balance she€1 is repres€nted by the statemenl

offinancial position and the profit snd loss account by lhe slatement ofProfit ot loss and olher

comprehensive income in these financial statemenls.

2. St.temetrt ofCompliance rnd B.3is ofPr€prrstior

The financial statements have been prepared on a historicalcost basis except for the measurement

at re-valued amounls ofceftai! hems ofproperty, planl and equipment, marketable securities and

financial instruments at fair value, impaired &ssels al th€ir estimated recoverable amounts and

actuarially determined Iiabilities at lheir present value. The preparalion offinancial statements in

conformity with Intemalional Financial Reponing Standsrds (IFRS) allows the use ofestimales

and 8ssumptions- It also requfes management lo exercise judgement in the process ofapplying

the Company's accounting policies.

Th€ finarrcial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya ShillinSs, which is lhe

fiinctional and reporti.g currency ofthe Company. The figures are rounded lo the nearesl Kenyan

shilling.

The financial stalemenls have treen prepared in accordance whh the PFM Act, lhe Slate

Corporations Act, Water Act 2016 and lhe Company's Act, and Intemational Financial Reporting



f,hrak Water etrd Sewerrge Compan) Lld.
Annual Rcport and Financiel Stelements for the yeor ended June .30,2023

Standards (IFRS). The accorinting policies adopted have been consistenlly applied to all the years

presented

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. Applicrtion of New .nd Reviscd loaern.tioo.l Finar.irl Rcporting St.nd.rds
(rFRS)

Amendments lo

IAS l6 tirled

Propeny, Planl

and Equipment:

Proceeds before

Intended Use

(issued in May

2020)

The amendments, applicable lo annualperiods

trginning on or afler I January 2022, prohibit a

company fiom deducting Iiom the cosl of
property, plant and equipment amounts received

from selling items produced while the company

is preparing an asset for its intended use. lnstead,

a company willrecognise such sales proceeds

and related cost in profit or loss

The amendments are

effective for annual periods

beSinning on or afier

lan]Jary 1,2022. Ea(ly

application is permitted.

Amendments to

IAS 37 tit led

Onerous

Contracts - Cost

ofFulfilling a

Contract (issued

in May 2020)

The amendments clarify that for the purpose of

assessing whether a contract is onerous, the cost

of fulfilling the contract includes both th€

incremenlal costs of fulfilling that conlract and

an allocation ofother costs thal relat€ directly to

fulfilling contracts. They 8re effective for

contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled

all its obligations on or nfra'r I Januty 2022.

The amendments are

eff€ctiv€ for annual p€riods

beginning on or afler

January 1,2022. Early

applicalion is permilted

The arnendmenls are

effective for annual periods

beginning on or afler

lan]uary 1,2022. Eatly

application is permitted.

AmendInent to

IFRS lritled

Subsidiary as a

Firsl-time

Adopter

The amendment, lpplicable to annual periods

b€ginning on or after I January 2022, provides a

subsidiary that becornes a first-iime adopter lalcr

than ils parent with an exemption relating lo the

measurement ofits assets and Iiabililies. The

exemption does not apply to components of

equity.

7

l. Next and omended slandards ond inle.prelotions in israa ellactiee ln ,ha yaar andad 30

June 2022
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Ehvek Witer.nd Sewerage Companv Ltd.
Annual Repon end Financial Statements for the year cnded June 30,2023

The amendments are

€ffective for annual periods

beginning on or affer

January l, 2022. Early

application is permitted

Amendment to

IFRS 9 titled Fees

in the '10 per

cent' T€sl for

D€recognition of

Financial

Liabilities

The amendment, applicable to annual pcriods

b€ginninS on or after I January 2022, to IFRS 9

clarifies the fees thal a company includes when

assessing whether the terms ofa new ot modified

financial liability 6r€ substanlially diffcrenl ftom

the terms ofthe original financial liability.

The amendment, applicable to annualperiods

beginning on or after I January 2022, to IAS 4l

removed the requbement to exclude taxation

cash flows when measuring fair value. This

amendmenl aligned lhe requirements in IAS 4l

on fair value measurement with those in olher

IFRS

The anrcndments are

effective for annual periods

beginning on or afier

January l,2022. Early

application is permitted.

Amendment to

IAS 4l tirled

Taxation in Fair

Value

Measuremenls

(issued in May

2020 as part of

the Annual

Improvements to

IFRS Standards

2018-2020)

Th. Directors haee orsessed the applicable slardatds ond omendments. Bosad on their assessme,l

of irnpac, of application of he above, lhey do ,tot .xpect lhal ,he.. will b. o signiftcanl impac, on

,he compony's Jirronciol slalemenls. Ot lhe Iollohring has beel osscssed lo bc signiftcanl lor lhe

codpah! ond hos beeh oddressed aslollott's....

ll
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Eh'vak Wster snd Sewerage Company Ltd.
Annual Reporl snd Fillancial Stalements for the ye.r ended June 30, 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cotrtioued)

Application of New rnd Revised Interortior.l Fin.nciel Reporlirg Strndrrds
oFRS)
ii. Ne* and amended sran.lards and inlerpretotiods ii issue but not lel ellective in lhe yeat

ended 30 June 2022.

IASI-
Presentation

ofFinancial

Statemenls

IAS I "Pres€ntation of Fin.ncial StatenEnts"

sets out lhe overall requirements for financial

statements, including how they should b€

struclured, the minimum requirements for their

content and overriding concepts such as going

concem, the accrual basis ofaccounting and the

cunent/non-curent dislinclion. The slandard

requies a complete set offinancial statemenls to

comprise a statement offinancial posilion, a

slatement ofprofit or loss and other

comprehensive income, a statement ofchanges

in eqrrity and a statcment ofcash flows.

The 6rncndments are

effective for annual periods

beginning on or after

January l, 2023. Earlier

application is permitled.

Amendments

to IAS I ritled

Classification

ofLiabilities

as Current or

Non-currenl

(issued in

January 2020)

The amendments, clariry a criterion in IAS I for

chssirying a liability as non-current: lhe

requtement for an entity to have the right lo

defer settlemenr ofthe Iiability for at l€ast l2

months after the reporting pffiod.

The amendments are

effective for annual periods

beginning on or after

January l, 2023. Earlier

applicslion is permitted.

Amendments

lo IAS I lilled

Disclosure of
Accounting

Policies

(issued in

The amendments, applicable to annualperiods

beginning on orafler lsl January 2023. require

entities to disclose lheir maaefial accounting

policy information rather than thet signifi.rtra

accounting policies

fT( ct

The amendments are

elfective for annual periods

beginning on or afler

January l, 2023. Earlier

application is p€rmitted.



Ehdek Wrter rrd Sewcrage Compsny Ltd.
Annuel Repo rl rnd Fillrncicl Statemenls for the vesr etrded Jutre 30. 2023

F€bruary

202t)

The amendments are

eflccl ive for annual

reponing periods beginning

on or after January l, 2023.

Early adoption is permitted.

IAS I2 -
Income Taxes

IAS 12, "lncomc Taxes" implem€nts 6 so-called

bomprehensive balance sheet melhod'of

accountmg for income taxes which recognizes

both lhe current tax consequences oftransactions

snd events and the future tax consequences of

lhe firlure recovery or s€nlemenl oflhe carrlinB

amount ofan entity's assets and liabiliies.

Differences between the carrying amount and tax

base ofassets and liabilities, and caried forwsrd

tax losses and credits, are rccognized, with

limitcd exceptions, ss defened tax liabilities or

deferred tax assats, with the latter also being

subject to a 'probable profits'tesl.

The amendments are

effective for annual

reporting periods beginning

on or after January l, 2023.

Early adoption is permitted.

IAS 8-

Accounting

Policies,

Enorc and

Estimates

The amendments, applicable to annualperiods

beginning on or afler lsl January 2023, introduce

a definilion of 'accounling eslimates' 6nd

include other amendm€nts to IAS 8lo help

entilies dislinguish changes in accounting

policies fiom changes in accounting estimates.

iil Eorly odop on ofslondatds

The entity did nol early - adopl any new or amended slandards in yeat 202A2023

l0

'itl( i I)escrlDrion rth€ DAl.



Ehdak Water and Sewerage Company Ltd.
Annual Report and Financial Stslemenls for the yeer ended June 30, 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Conlinuei)

4. Summery of Signilicenr Accouotiog Policies

The principle accounting policies adopted in th€ preparation ofthese financial statemenls are set oul

below:

r) Revenue Ecoglition

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the entity expecls to be €ntitled in 8

contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalfofrhird parties. The entity

r€cognizes revenue when il transfers control ofa producl or service to a customer.

i) Rev.nue fmm tha sah ofgoods rnd sei?ices is rccognised in the year in which the

Company delivers products/services lo the customer, lhe customer has acc€pted the

products/services and collectability ofthe related receivables is reasonably assurcd.

ii) Gretrts from Govcrnmetrl Enlities are recognised in the year in which lhe Company

actually receives such grants. Recurcnt granls are recognized in the statem€nt of

comprehensive irrcorne. Developmeny'capital grants are recognized in lhe stalemenl of

financial position and realised in the statement ofcomprehensive income over the useful

life ofthe assets that has been acquired using such funds.

iii) Finance income comprises interest r€ceivable fiom bank deposits and investment in

securities, and is recognised in profit or loss on a tiln€ proportion basis using the

efleclive interest rate rEthod.

iv) Dividcnd income is recognised in the incorne statement in the year in which the right to

receive the paym€nt is cstablished.

v) Rentrl incom€ is recognised in the income statement as it accrues using the effective

interest implicit in lease agreements.

vi) Othcr income is recognised as it accru€s.

lt



AInusl Reporl end Financial Slstemenls for the year ended June 30,2023

NOTf,S TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Summary of Signilicant AccouDting Poliai€s

b) In-kildcontributioDs

In-kind contributions 6re donations that are made to the Company in the form ofactual goods

and/or s€rvices ralher than in money or cash terms. Th€se donations may include vehicles,

equipment, utilities or persormelservices. Where the financial value r€ceived for in_kind

conlributions can be reliably determined, the Company includes such value in the statement of

comprclEnsive income both as revenue and as an expense in equal and opposite amounts:

otherwise, the contribution is not recorded but disclosed.

c) Prcpcrty, phnt rnd .quipEclt

AII categories ofproperty, plant and equipment are inilially recorded at cosl less accumulated

depreciation and impatment losses.

Certain calegories ofproperty, planl and equipment are subsequenlly car.ied at re-valued

amounts, being their fair v6lue al lhe dale ofre-valuation less any subsequent accumulated

depreciation and impairmenl losses. Wlrcre re-measuremenl at re_valued arnounts is dested,

all items in an asset category are re-valued thtrough p€riodic valuations canied our by

indepcndent external valuers.

Increases in the carrying amounts ofass€ts arising Fom re-valuation are credited to other

comprehensive income. Decreases that offset previous increases in the caryinS amount ofthe

same asset are charged agsinst the revalualion rese.ve accounl; allother decreases are charged

to prcfrt or loss in the income statement. Cains and losses on disposal ofhems of Property,

planl 8nd equipmenl are determined by comparing the prcceeds ftom the disPosal with lhe net

carrying amount ofthe items, and are recoSnised in profit or loss in the income statement.

l2
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Elw.k Water snd So*€roge Company Ltd.
Atrtrusl Report snd Fio.trcirl Statomcrts for the yerr ended Junc 30, 2023

NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contitrued)

Summrry of SignificrDl Accoutlling Policies

d) Deprecistion f,nd impeirment ofpropcrty, plant and equipmert

Freehold land and capital work in progress are not depreciated. Capital work in progress

relates rnainl) to the cost ofongoing but incomplete works on buildings and other civil works

and installations.

Deprecialion on property, plant and equipment is recognised in the income statemenl on a

straighrline/reducing balance basis to write down the cost ofeach asset or th€ re-valued

amounl to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The annual rales in us€ are:

A full year's depreciarion charge is recognised both in the year ofasset purchase and in the

year ofasset disposal.

Items ofpropeny, plant and equipment are reviewed annually for impairment. Wlere the

carrying amount ofan asset is assessed as grealer lhan fls estimated recoverable amount, an

impairment loss is recognised so that the asset is written down immediately to its estimated

recoverable amount.

Freehold Land 0

Leasehold Land

Buildings and civil works 20

Planl and nuchinery 8.40/,

IOMotor vehicles, including motor cycles

Computers and related equipmenl 5 400/r

5 20%Office equipmenl, fumiture and fitlings

Ilonr

0

t2.5

t3



Elwek Weter snd Sewerrgc Comprny Ltd
Annusl Reporl rnd Financial Statcments for the year erd€d June 30' 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCTAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Summrry of Signilicsnt Accouotitrg Policies

e) InasDgible .ssets

lntan8ible assels with lmite usefirl lives thal are acquited separately are carried al cost less

accumulated amorlizalion and accumulaled impairment loss€s. Amonization is recognized on

a straightJine basis over their estimated useful lives . The estimated useful life and

amonrzation method are reviev/ed at the end ofeach reponing period, with the effecl ofany

changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. lntanSible assets with

indefinite useful lives lhat are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated

impairmenl losses.

f) Amortisalion and lmpairmeol ofirtrngiblc rss.t!

Amortisation is calculated on the straight-line basis over the estimaled useful life ofthe

intangible asset. All intangible assets are reviewed annually for impairment. ',l/here the

carrying arnounl ofan intangible asset is assessed 8s greater than its estimated recoverable

amounl, an irnpatment loss is recognised so thal the asset is written down immediat€ly to its

estimaled recoverable amount.

g) Inv6tmert prop.rty

Inveslment property, which is property held to eam r€ntals and/or for capital appreciation

(inchdiog property under conslruction for such purposes), is measurcd initially at cost,

including lransaction costs. Subsequent to initialrecognition, investment propeny is measured

al hir value- Cains or losses arising from changes in the fair value ofinvestment property are

includ€d in profr or loss in the period in which th€y arise. An investrnent property is

derecognized upon disposalor when th€ investrnent property is Perrnanenlly witMrawn fiom

use and no fulure economic benefits are expecled from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising

on derecognilion ofthe property (calculated as the difference belween the net disposal

proceeds and th€ carrying amount ofthe asset) is included in profit or loss in th€ p€riod in

which the prop€(y is derecognized.

l1



Eh,vak Water {nd S€werage Company Ltd.
Anousl Reporl ird Finencial Statements for the vear ended June 30,2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coutiuued)

Summary of sigrilicant Accouoting Policies

h) Right of Use Assct

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measuremenl ofthe corresponding leas€ liability,

lease payments made al or before lhe commencement day, less any lease incenlives received

and any inilial direct costs. They are subsequently m€asured at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses. whenever the entity incurs an obligation for cons to

dismantle and remove a leased asset, reslore the site on which it is located or restore the

underlying ass€t to the condition required by the terms and conditions ofthe lease, a

provision is recognized and measured under IAS 37. To the extcnt lhat the cosls relate lo a

right-of-use asset, the costs are included in the related ri8hl-of-use asset, unless those costs

are incured to produce inventories. Right-of-use ass€ts are deprccialed over the shorter

period of leas€ term and useful life ofthe underlying assel. lfa leas€ transfers ownership of

the underlying asset or the cost ofthe right-of-use asset reflects thal the entity expects to

exercise a purchase option, the relaled right-of-use asse! is depreciated over the useful life

ofthe underlying asset. The depreciation starls al the commencement date ofthe lease. The

right-of-use assets are presenled as a separate line in the stalement offinancial position-

i) Fixed ioleresa investments (bond!)

Fixed interest investments refer to investment funds placed under Central Bank ofKenya

(CBK) long-term iniaslructue bonds and other corporaie bonds with the intention of

eaming interest income upon the bond's disposal or maturity. Fixed interesl inv€stments are

fieely traded at the Nairobi Securities Exchange. The bonds are measured al fair value

throuSh profn or loss.

j) Quotcd invBtm.nts

Quoted investrn€nts are classified as non-current assets and comprise marketable securities

traded freely at the Natobi Securities Exchange orother r€gional6nd intemalional

securilies exchanges. Quoted investments are stated at fat value.
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Elwak water and Seworage Comp{ny Ltd.
Annu{l Report and Financial Statehents for the ]err ended June J0, 2023

NOTES TO THE TINANCtAL STATEMENTS (Cortitru.d)

Summrry of Sigllillcsnt Accourtitrg Policies

k) Unquoted inv$tments

Unquoted investments stated at cost under non-current assets, and comprise equity shares

held in other Covernmenl owned or controlled entities thst are not quoted in the Securities

Exchange.

l) lnv.riories

lnventories are staled at the lower ofcost and net realizable value. Cost comPrises dtecl

materials and. where applicable, ditect labou costs and those overheads that have been

incuned in bringing the inventories to their presenl location and condition. Cost is

cslculaled using the weighted average cost method. Net realizable value repres€nts the

estimated selling price less all estimated costs ofcompletion and costs lo b€ incurred in

marketing, selling and distribution.

m) Trrd. rtrd othcr reccivables

Tmde and other rcceivables are recognized al fair values less allowances for any

uncollcctible amounts. Thesc are assessed for impairment on a continuing basis. An

estimate is made ofdoubtful receivables based on a rcview ofall outstanding arflounls at the

year end. Bad debts are wrilten offafter all effons at recovery have been exhausted and

when the necessary approval to write offis granted.
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Elwak Witer snd Se*erage Company Ltd.
Atrnusl Report snd Financi.l Slatements for the yeer ended JuDe 30,2023

NOTES TO THf, FINANCIAL STATEMf,NTS (Cotrlinu.d)

Summrry of Signlfic.El Accounlitrg Policics

n) Irrslion
i) Curr.nt incomc trx

Current irrome trx assets and liabiliti€s for the cunent period are rneasured at the artrolnl

expecled to be recovered fiom or paid to the taxation authorilies. The tax rates and tax laws

used to compute the arnount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, atlhe

reporling date in the area where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relaling to items recognized directly in net assets is recognizcd in net

assets and nol in th€ statement offinaocial performance.

Current incom€ isx &sscrs and liabilitics for the current period are measured at the amounl

expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws

used to comput€ the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the

reporting date in lhe area where the Entity operates aod generates taxable income.

Management periodically evaluates posilions taken in the tax returns with respect to

situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretalion and establishes

provisions where appropriate.

o) Defcrred lu
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the t,Lx

bases ofassets and liabililies and their canying amounts for financialreponing purposes 6t

the repofting date.
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Ehdak Water and Sewerage Compeny Ltd.
Annual Rcpo rt and Financial Slatements for the )car ebded Junc 30,2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Summ.ry of Signilicant Accounting Polici€s

D€fened tax liabilities are recognized for alltaxable temporary differences, except in respect of

laxable temporary differences associated with investments in controlled entities, associates and

intcrests injoint venlures, when the timing ofthe reversal ofthe temporary differences can be

controlled and it is probable that the lemporary differences will nol reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for alldeductible temporary difTerenccs, lhe carry forward of

unused tax crcdits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is

probsbl€ that l&\able profit will be available againsl which the deductible temporary differences, and

the carry forward ofunused lax credits and unused lax losses can be utilized, except in respect of

deductible temporary differences associated with investments in controlled cntilies, associates and

interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only lo the cxtcnt thal it is probable that

the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable futur€ and taxable profit will be available

against which the lemporary differences can be utilized.

The canying amount ofdeferred tax assets is reviewed al €ach reponinS date and reduced to the

extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profi! will be available to allow all or pan of

lhe deferred tax asset lo be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each

reporting date and are recognized to rhe cxtent thal it has b€come probable that future taxable profits

will allow the defened tax asset to be rccovered. Deferred tax assels and liabilities are measured st

the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the assel is realized or lhe liability is settled,

based on tax r6tes (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporling

date.

Deferred tax relating !o items recognized ouside surplus or deficit is recognized outside surplus or

deficit. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to lhe underlying transaclion in net assets.

Deferred tax assels and deferred ta\ liabilities are offset ifa legally enforceable righl exists to set off

curent tax assels against cunenl incorne tax liabilities and lhe defe[ed taxes rehte to the same

tax6ble enlit, and the same taxation authorhy.
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Elwak Water ond Sewerage Company Ltd.
Annual Report aod Financial Stalements for the year eDded June 30, 2023

NOTES TO THE TINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Corlinucd)

Summrry of Signifi cant Accounting Polici€s

p) Borrowiog costs

Borrowing costs diectly attributable to the acquisitiol! construction or produclion of

qualifying assets, which are ass€ts that necessarily take a substantial period of time to 8et

ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost ofthose assets, until such lime as

the assets are subslantially ready for their intended use or sale. To the exlent that variable

rate borrowings are used to fiMnce a qualifying asset and are hedSed in an effective cash

flow hedge ofinterest rate risk, the effective ponion ofthe derivative is recoSnized in other

comprehensive income and reclassified to profil or loss when lhe qualifying asset impacts

prold or loss. To the extenl thal fixed rale borrowings are used to finance a qualifying asset

and are hedged in an effective fair value hedge ofinlerest rate risk, the capitalized

borrowing costs reflect the hedged interest rate. Investment income earned on lhc

temporary investmenl ofspecific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualirying

assets is deducted liom lhe borrowing costs eligible for capilalization. Allother borrowing

costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which lhey are incurred.

q) Crlh atrd cosh equivsletrts

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, shon+erm deposits on

call and highly liquid investments with an original maturity ofthree months or less, which

are readily convertible to known amounts ofcash and are subject to insignificant risk of

changes in value. Bank account balances include arnounls held al various Commercial

Banlis at the €nd ofthe reponing period. For the purposes oflhese financial stalements, cash

and cash equivalents also include shon term cash imprests and advances to authorised

public omcers and/or instilulions which were not surrendered or accounted for at the end of

the financial year.
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Etwrk Water and Sew€rage Company Ltd.
Annual Report snd Finrncial Statements for lhe year ended June 30, 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Summery of Signili.ant Accounting Poliaies

r) BormwiDgs

Interest bearing loans and ovardrafis are initially recorded at fair value b€ing received, nel

ofissue cosls assocrated \xilh thc bonowing. Subsequenlly, these are measured at amortised

cost using the effective interesl rate rnethod. Amonis€d cosl is calculated by taking into

account any issue cost and any discount or premium on settlement. Finance charges,

including premiums payable ofsettlement or redemption are accounted for on accrual basis

and are added lo the carying amount olrhe instrument to the extent that they are not senled

in the period in which they aris€. Loan inlerest accruing during the construction ofa project

is capilalised as part ofthe cost ofthe proj€cl.

s) Trrde rnd other p.y.blcs

Trade and other payables are non-interesl haring and are carried at amo(ised cost, which is

measured at lhe fair value ofcontraclual value ofthe considemtion to be paid in future in

respecl ofgoods and serviccs supplied, whelher billed to the entity or nol, less any Payments

made to the suppliers.

t) Pmvfuior for.l.ffl.rve p.y

Employees' entitlements to aimual leave are recognised as they accrue. A provision is made

for thc estimaled liabilily for annual leave at the.eportrng dste.

l0



Annual Report snd financial Statements for the ycar cnded June 30, 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATf,MENTS (Contitru.d)

Summrry of SiStrificrnt AccountiIg Policies

u) Erchetrgc rrte dillerences

The accounting records are maintained in the functional currency oflhe primary economic

environment in which the entity operates, Kenya Shillings. Transactions in foreign

currencies during the year/period are translat€d into the funct iona I currency using the

exchange rates prevailing at the dates oflhe transactions or valuation where items are re-

measured. Any foreign exchanSe gains and losses r€suhing from the s€ttlement ofsuch

transactions and liom the lranslation al year-end exclrange rates ofmonelary assets and

liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

v) Budget ilformrlion

The original budget for Fy 2022-2023 was apprcved by the Board ofDirectors on

01107/2023. Subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were made to the approved

budget in accordarrce with sp€cific spprovals fiom the appropriale authoriiies. The

additional appropriat ions are added to the original budget by the entity upon receiving the

respective approvals in order to conclude the final budget. Accordingly, the Company

recorded an approprialion of Kshs 94,240, 186 onthe 2022-2023 bttdSet following the

goveming body's approval. The Company's budget is prepared on a different basis to the

actual income and expenditure disclosed in the financial statements. The financial

statements are preparcd on accrual basis using a classificstion based on the nalure of

expenses in the statement offinancial performance, whereas the budget is prepared on a

cash basis. The amounls in the financial statemenls were recast Fom the accrual basis to the

cash basis and reclassified by presentation to be on the same basis as the approved bud8el.

A comparison ofbudget and actual amounts, prepared on a comparsble basis lo the

approved budget, is lhen presented in the statement ofcomparison ofbudg€t and actual

arnounls. In addition to the Basis difference, adjustments to amounts in the financial

slatements are also rrade for differences in the formats and classification schemes adopted

for the presentation ofthe financial statements ard lhe approved bld8et. A statement to

reconcile lhe actualamounts on a comparable basis included in the statement ofcomparison

ofbudgel and actual amounts and the acluals as per the statement of Comprehensive

income has been presented under section IX ofthese financial statemenls.

21
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Elwsk Wat€r and Scweragc Company Lld.
Annusl Repo rl .nd Finarcial Statements for lhe vear ended June 30,2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CotrtiDue!)

w) S.dica concession rrmlrgamctrts

The Company analyses all aspects ofservice concession arrangements thal il enlers inlo in

determining the appropriate 6ccounting treatment and disclosure requiements. ln pa.ticular,

where a private party contributes an assel lo the arrangement, the Company recognizes that

8ss€l when, and only when, it conttols ot regulates the services th€ operator musl provide

together with lhe asset, to whom it must provide lhem, and 6t what price. ln the case ofassets

other lhan 'whole-of-life' assets, it controls, throuSh ownership, beneficial enthlement or

otherwise - any significant residual interesl in the asset st the end ofthe arrangement. Any

assets so recognized are rneasured at thei fai value. To lhe extent that an asset has been

recognized, the Company also recognizes a corresponding liability, adjusted by a cash

considcralion paid or received.

t) Comparrtive fgures

Where necessary comparstive figures for the previous financialyear have been amended or

reconfigured to conform to tlrc requircd chan8es in presentalion.

y) Subsequeot cvents

There have been no events subscquent to the fmancial year end wilh s significant impact on the

financial stalements for the year ended June 30, 2023.

5. Signilic.na Judgmcnts snd Sources of Estimrtio[ Uncerrxinty

The preparation ofthe Company's financial statements in conformity with IFRS requtes

management to rnakejudgments, estimates and assumptions that alTect the reponed anpunls of

reveDues, expenses, ass€ls and liabilities, and the disclosure ofcontingent liabilities, at the end

ofthe reporting p€riod. However, urrcertainty about these assumptions and estimates could

resuh in outcornes thal requte a material sdjustrnent lo the carrying arnount oflhe asset or

liability affected in future periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Conainues)

,) Estimrt6 and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources ofestimation uncenainty at

the reponing date, that have a significant risk ofcausing a material adjustment to the carrying

amounls ofassets and liabilities within the next financi6lyear, are described below. The

company based its assumptions and estimates on paramelers available when the financial

slatements were prepared. However, existing circumslances and assumptions aboul future

developments may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control

ofthe Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

b) Usaful livcs aod rrsidual valu€s

The usefirl liv€s and residual vslues ofassets are assessed usinS the following indicators to

inform potential future use and value from disposal:

. The condirion ofthe asset based on the assessment ofexpens employed by the Company

. The nature ofthe asset, ils susceptibility and adaptability to chsnges in technobgy and

processes

. The rntur€ oflhe processes in which the asset is deployed

r Availability offunding to replace the assels
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NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Corlinues)

6. Operoting Revenue

7. Grrnts lncome

8. ln Nind Contribution

195,857 4.162.515Revenue realized

804.166 2.762,785Receivables

1,000,023 6,92s.J00Tolal Water ssles

85,240.186 85,240. t86

Mand€ra

Counry

Governmenl 85,240,r86 0 78.758.464

85,240,1860 7E,758,464 85,240,186Tolsl

26,380,200 r2,000,000ln Kind contribution/donations from Mandera County

Government
26,380,200 12,000,000Total

24
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Annual Rcporl and financisl Stotements for the year cnded June 30, 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9. Other Income

10. St.ll Costs

Sale ofTender 0 0

Fine and penalties 0 0

Total (l 0

Gross Salary and Allowances- In Kind 26,180,200 t2,000,000

Casual workers' Wages r3,734,350 4,775,462

Medical insurance schemes 171,000 0

Total 40,285,s50 16,715,462

25
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Eh"-.rk Waler and Sewerage Company Lld.
Annu{l Repo rt snd Financial Statements for the vear ended Jube 30, 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CoDtinued)

ll.Gereral and Operrtions Expenses

12. Boerd Expenses

t00,000 399,970Eleclricity
8,440,0002,500,000Fuel, oil, lubricants, and gases

21,980,9t421,672,560Production supplies

t6,713,986 26,354,6t6S€lling and distribution cost

88r,220.63 900,000Ollice supplies
0 850,000Office operations

400,000 500,000Tel€communication
750,000 r,800,000Hire ofEquipment and vehicles

500,0000Fuel for Motor vehicle
3,742,8008,304,700Staff training and de!elopmen(

750.000Board Training
16,719.37 t5,090Bank Charges

t,000,000 r,500,000Securily services

1,100,000 875,000Hospitality exp€nses

0Research and Developrnent
0Cons€rvation expenses

0Provision for doublful debts

1.161.908 0Ohers (Speciry)- vAT Contribution for UPC project

61.51r.t54 67,858J90Totel

00Chairman Honoraria

372,8000Shling allowances

0 0Medicallnsurance

0 240.600Induction and Training

0 3,543,051Travel and accommodation

0 4,156,451Total Board Expenses

26
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Elwak Wster and Sewerrge Compstry Ltd.
Annuel Report and Finsncial Statcmenk for the year eDded June 30,2023

I4. Depreciation and Amortizrtio]t Erpenses

t94,680 500,000Oflce rails

500.000Total Maintensnce Expenses 191,680

8,991,761 8,017,524Propeny, plant, and equipment

Totel Depreciation and Amortization 8,99!,7$ 8,0{7,524

27
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Eh{ak Water ard Se! erage Company Ltd
AnnualRepo rt snd Financial Statements for the year endcd June 30, 2023

15, Property, Phnt and Equipment

Freeho
ld llnd

Buildiogs &
civil work machinerv

Computers &
relstcd
equipmcIt

Oflic. equipmcrt,
furniture &
liltinps Total

cosT oR
VALUATION 0 LI u 0 t)

AI July l, 2021 1,2oo,ooo J0,l56Jr6 2,915,851 s.81J,000 40,t45,19',7

Additions 0 0 21,980,9t4 0 5,999,098 27,980,012

At June 30. 2022 0 1,200,000 52,1.37,260 2.9{5.85t l1,8{2,098 68,125.209

Dl:l'lil-(ll^-I ION as
At Jutre 30, 2022

0 (120,000) (4,380,764) (r,178,340) (2,168,420) (8,047,524'

NET BOOK VALUE
as At June 30,2022

0 1,080,000 41,156,196 1,767,51I 9.,17J,67{t 60,077,685

0 0 0 0 0

At July l, 2022 1,080,000 47,756,496 1,767,5n 9,473,6t8 60,077,685

Additions o 0 27,672,560 0 0 27,612,560

At Jure 30, 202.3 0 I,080,,000 '7 5,429,056 1,167,51I 9,413,618 87,750,215

DfPR E(-laTION As
At Juo€ 30, 2023

0 (54,000) (6,336,041) (707.004) (1,894,736) (8.991,78r)

Depr€cirtion
(r 74,000) (r0,7 r6,t05) 0.885,144) (4,263,t56' (17,039,305)

NET BOOK VALUE
As At June30,2023

o 1,026,000 69,093,015 1.060,507 1,318,912 78,758,.r6.1
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Elwak Wrter and Sewersge Company Ltd.
Annurl Rcporl and Financial Stat€ments for the year ended June 30,202J

16. Trede and 0ther Receivables

16 (r) Trade Receivables

Trade receivables 801, t66

Net trrde and olher receivables 80{.166 2,167,185

Grosstrade receivables 80,1.166 2,762,785

Provision for dourbtful receivables 0 (0)

Net trade receivables 0 2.762,185

at June 30, the ogeing analysis ofthe gross trade receivsbles was rs follows:

Over I20 davs 804, t66 2,762,78s
Total 80{.166 2,162,185

29

2,162,785



Ehdak Water and Sewerage Compsny Ltd
Annual Repo rl and Finsncisl Statements for lhe year ended June 30,2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Con(irued)

17 Bank and Cash bslances

Detailed an{lysis ofthe cash and cash equivslcnts

t I ,290,646.34 201,879Cash at bank

0Cash in hand 0

00Mobile inoney account

I I ,290,646.34 203.879

a) Currcnt rccount
10,026,t21.34 r6,t59Equity bank hd- Operation a/c 1000280260168

186,720I000280160,1t 7 2,6t7Equity bank ltd- Revenue ./c
t,26t,908Equity bank ltd-Development a/c

203,879I1,290,646.3.1Grand total

-'t0

r000280259289



Etwak Water rnd Sewerage Company Ltd.
Annual Report snd Financi{l Saatements for the year ended Juoe 30, 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1E. Ordinary Shsre Crpitsl

19. Crpil.l.rd Rctciver

(.) R.v.lurlioD R.!Grv.

The revaluation reserve relates to the revaluation ofcertain items ofproperty, plant and equipment. As

indicaled in the Statem.nt olChanges in Equity, this is stated after transfer ofexcess depreciation net

ofrclaled defered tax to retained earnings. Revaluation surpluses are not distributable.

(b) Fair V.lue Adjustment Rescrve

The fair value adjustment reserve arises on the revaluation ofavailable-for-sale financial assets,

principally the marketable securities. When a financial assel is sold, the portion ofthe res€rve that

relates to that asset is reduced fiom the fair value adjustment reserve and is recognised in prolit or loss

where a financial asset is impaired, the portion ofthe reserve that relates to that asset is recognised in

profit or loss.

(c) Reaained Earnings

The retained earnings represent amounts available for distribution to Elwasco shareholders

Undistributed retained earnings are utilised to finance the Elwasco business activities.

Authorized:
100 ordinary shares ofKshs par 100 value each 100.000 100,000

lssued and full) paid:
100 ordinary shares ofKshs 1000 par value each 100.000 100.000

lt
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NOTES To THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

20. Tnde and Other Payables

2I. NOTES TO THT STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS

2l (!) Operrting Revenue

21 Other Iocorre

2l(c) Grarts locom.

18,590,380Trade payables 19,572,518

19,572,518 18,590,380Total

4,162,5t 5t95,857Revenue realized

195,857 ,1,162,515Total

0 0Sale ofTender
0 500,000Fine and penalties

500,0000

85,240,r86 85,240,186

Mandera

County

Covernment 85,240,r86 {) 78.758,464

78,15a,464 85,240,186 85,240,186Totsl 85,240,186 0

32
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Elwak Water and Seweruge Company Ltd.
Annual Rcport and Financial Stalements for thc ycar cnded June 30,2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATf,MENTS (Continued)

2l (d) StrffCosts

2l(e). General and Operations Erpenses

In-kind contribution ftom the counly 26.380.200

Casual workers' Wages 13,734,350 4,77 5,462

Medical insurance schemes I 71,000 0

Other allowances 0 0

Total 4,715,462

Electricity 100,000 399,910
Fuel, oil, lubricants, and gases 2,500,000 8,440,000
\Selling and distribution cost 16,773,986 26,354,6t 6

Office supplies 88r,220.63 900,000

Office op€rations 0 850,000
Telecommunication 400,000 500,000
Hire ofEquipment and vehicles 750,000 r,800,000
Fuel for Motor vehicle 0 500,000
Staff training and development 8,304,700 3,742,800
Board Training 750,000

Banl Charges 16,179.37 15,090

Security services r,000,000 t,500,000
Hospitalily expenses r, r00,000 875,000
Olhen (Sp€cify)- VAT Coniribution for UPC project 1,26t,908 0

SUB-TOTAL 33,83t,59{ 45,811,176

Cosh Fbws from IDvesting Activities
Purchase OfProperty, Plant And Equipment (PPE) 2i,980,9r4
SI]B.TOTAI, 21,672,560 2I,980,91,t
GRAND-TOTAL 6t,51I,l5{ 67,858,390

ll

10,285,550

27,672,560



Ehdak water and Scuerage Compan)' Ltd.
AnnualReporl snd Finxncial Statements for lhe year eDded June 30, 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2l(0 Borrd Erpctrses

2l (g). MaiDtenarce Expenses

Other Disclosures

22. Rebted Party Disclosures

County Govemm€nl of Mandera

The County Govemment ofMandera is the principal shareholder ofthe Company,

holding 100% ofthe Company's equity interest. The County ofGovernment ofMandera

has provided full guarantees to all long-term lendem ofthe Company, both domestic and

external.

Other related parties include:

. The County Depa(ncnt in charge of Waler

. County Governmenl ofMandera

. Water works Agencies

. WASREB

. WARMA

. Water Sector Trust Fund

. Key management

. Board ofdirectors

. Orhers (specify)

00Chairman Honoraria

0 372,800Sitting allowances

00Medical Insurance

{) 210,600Induction and Training

0 3,543,051Travel and accomrDdation
,t,I56,45t0Total Board Erpenses

194,680 500,000Omce rails

500,00019.1,680Total Maintctrance Expenses

3,1



Elwak Waaer and Sewerage Company Ltd.
Annual Report and Financiul Statemenls for the year ended June 30, 2023

23. Financial Risk Managemenl

The Company's activities expose it to a variety offinancial risks including credit and liquidity risks

and effects ofchanges in foreign currency. The company's ovemll risk management programme

focls€s on unpredictability ofchanges in (he busin€ss environment aod seeks to minimise the potential

adverse eflecl ofsuch risks on its performance by setting acceptable levels ofrisk. The company does

not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that credit is only cxtended to custorners with an

established credit history.

(D Market risk

The board has put in place an intemal audit function lo assist it in assessing the risk faced by the

Company on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the desiSn and effectiveness of its intemal accounting

and op€rational controls.

Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity pri€es and

fo.eign exchange rates which will affect the entity's income or the value of its holding of financial

inslrurnents. The objective of nwket risk management is to manage and contrcl markel risk cxposures

within acceptable parameters, while optimising the retum. Overallresponsibility for managing markct

risk rests with the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

The company's Department in charge ofrisk management is responsible for the development of

detailed risk management policies (subject to review and approval by Audit and Risk Management

Committee) and for the day to day implementation oflhos€ policies.

There has been no change to the Company's exposure to market risks or the rnanner in which it

manages and measures the risk.

a) Foreigtr currency risk

The Company has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure aris€s tluough Purchases of

goods and services that 8re done in currencies olher than the local currency. Invoices

denominated in foreign currencies are paid after 30 days from the date ofthe invoice and

conversion at the time ofpayment is done using the prevailing exchanSg rate.

l5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

b) Foreign currency sensitivity anrlysis

The following table demonstrates the effect on the company's slatement ofcomprehensive incom€

on applying the sensitivity for a reasonable possible change in the exchange rate ofthe three main

transaction curencies, with allolher variables held constant. The reverse would also occur ifthe

Kenya Shilling appreciated with all other variables held constant.

c) Interelt rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk thar the Company's financial condition may b€ adversely affected as a

result ofchanges in inlerest rate levels. The company's interest rate risk arises from bank deposits

This exposes the company to cash flow inlerest rate risk. The interest rate risk exposure arises

mainly from intercst rale rDvements on the company's deposits.

d. Management ofinlerrst reie dsk

To rnanage the idterest rale risk, management has endeavoured to bank with institutions that

ofTcr favourable interest rates.

2022Current FY
0Euro 0

0I.]S D {)

2021 Previous FY
0Iauro 0

0IJSD 0

'16

{ur
lish



Elwak Wsler and Seweruge Company Ltd
AnnualRcport and Financisl Statenrents for the year endcd June 30, 202f,

NOTES TO THE FTNANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e). Fair vrlue offiDancial assets snd liabilities

o) Finonciol inslrumenls meosured al lair talue

Determination ofiat value and fair values hierarchy

IFRS 7 specifies a hierarchy ofvaluation techniques bascd on whether the inputs to those

valuation techniques are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data

obtained from independent sources; unobservable inputs reflecl the Company's market

assumptions. These two lypes ofinputs have created the following fair value hierarchy:

i) Level I - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active matkets lor identicalassets or liabilities

This level includes listed equity securities and debt instruments on exchanges.

ii) Level 2 lnputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that are obs€rvable

for the 6sset or liability, either dtectly (that is, as prices) or indbectly Chat is, derived

fiom prices).

iii) Level 3 inpuls for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs). This levcl includes equity investments and debt instruments

wirh significant unobservable components. This hierarchy requires the use of

observable market data when available. The Company considers relevant and

ob'servable market prices in its valuations where possible.

l7



Elwak water 0nd sewerage Company Ltd.
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24. Itrcorpor.tior
The Company is incorporated in Kenya under the Kenyan Companics Act and is domicilcd in

Kenya.

25. f,vents After the Reponitrg Period
There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporring period.

26. Curretrcy
The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs).

l8
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APPENDIX l: PROGRESS ON FOLLOw UP OF AtTDITOR RECOMMENDATIONS

The following is the summary of issues raised by the external auditor, and management comments that
were provided to the auditor. We have nominated focal percons to resolve the various issues as shown
below with the associated time frame within which we expect the issues to be resolved.

I

lnaccuracies in lhe
Financial Statemenls

Issa Ahmed
Ati

Head of
Finance

Not
resolved

I vear

2

Unaccounted for Waler
Sal6s

Issa Ahmed
Ali

Head of
Finance

Not
resolved

I year
The financial staternent was

arYEnded hence the issue is
corrected and addressed

l
Unsupporled Board Sitling

The company has installed
more waler metcrs to reduce
non -revenue water although
sufficient colleclion was
hindered prolonged draught
and suffering

Suleiman
Ibrahim

CEO

Nor
resolved

I year

.l
Unsupported Trade and
Other Receivables

The trade receivables have
been supponed

lssa Ahmed
Ali

Not
resolved

I year

5
Not
resolved

Unsupported Trade and
Olher payables

The trade payables have been

supported

Head of
Finance

Non-Disclosure of Material
Uncertainty Relating to
Going Concern

The company has pul
measures in place to counter
the issue

Issa Ahmed
Ali

Not
resolved

I year

7
Budgelary Conlrol and The company has put

measures in place to counler
the issue

Head of
Finance

Not
resolved

I ycar

8

LJnresolved Prior Year
Matters

Issa Ahmed
Ati

Not
resolved

I year

9

Failure lo lmplernenl
Electronic Procur€menl
Melhod

The company has put
measures in place to counter
the issue

The company has put
measures in place to counler
the issue

Head of
Finance

Not
resolved

l9

The issues raised against the
Financial staternent was
arnended and approved by
the board

I year

I year
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I yearlssa Ahmed
Ati

Not
resolvedl0

lndefinile Hire of
Equipment and Vehicles

The company has put
m€asures in place to counter
the issue

Not
resolved

I yearHead of
Financell

Failure to Deducl and Lale
Submission of Stalutory
Deductions

The company has put
measures in place to counter
the issue

lssa Ahmed
Ati

Nol
resolved

I year

t2
National Hospital
Insurance Fund (NfllF)
Deductions

The company has put
measures in place to countcr
the issue

Not
resolved

I yearHead of
Financetl

National Social Security
Fund (NSSF)
lreductions

The company has put
measures in place to counter
the issue

Issa Ahmed
Ali

Not
resolved

I year

l4

Lack of e Licen3o frcm
Wat6r Soavicos
Rogulatory Board
(wAsREB)

The company has put
measures in place to counter
the issue

Not
resolved

I yearHead of
Financet5

L.ck of r Flxcd Assct
Reglstot

The company has put
measures in place to counter
the issue

Not
resolved

I yearlssa Ahmed
Ali16

F.ilure to Eltablish an
lnternal Audlt Unit and
Audit Commltteo

The company has put
measures in place to counter
the issue

Not
resolved

I yearHead of
Financet7

Leck of Rbk
mrn.g.m6nt Policy end

The company has put
measurcs in place to counter
lh€ issue

Issa Ahmed
Ali

Not
resolved

I vear
I8 Non-R6vqnue Water

The company has put
measures in place to countel
the issue

Not
resolved

Head of
Financel9

Lack of Stalf
E6t.blbhm.nt and
schomo o, Servlce

The company has put
measures in place to counter
the issue

Not
resolved

I yearThe company has pul
measures in place to counter
the issue

Issa Ahmed
Ati20

Lact ot Oebt
iranrgement and Bad
Debt Pollcie3

Head of
Finance

l\_ot

resolved
I yearLack of Approv€d

lnformatlon Technology
Security Pollcy

The company has put
measures in place to counter
the issue

2t

40

Chairman ofthe Board

I year

C.E.O
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APPENDIX II: PROJECTS TMPLEMENTED BY THE ENTITY

Projects

Projects implem€nted by ELWASCO Funded by development partneE

Status of Projecls complelion

I N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

I N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/AN/A N/A N/A

l N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

4-',1
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APPENDIX III: INTER-ENTITY TRANSFERS

The above arDounls have been communicated to and reconciled with the parent M inistry
llead ofFinance & Adm AIE tlolder
ELWAS EL

S

a- Recurrent Crants

Amounl (KShs)

lndicate lhe FY to
which the amounts
relate

Bank Statement
Datc

817 /2022 4,397,886.00Recurrent
3,321,M0.@Recurrent t2/10/2022

14,000,000 00Recurrent 21lU2022
10,000,000.00Recurrent 28/12/2022

12/1012022 2,842,300.O0Recurrent
13,000,o00.00Recurrcnt 11./s12023

10,000,000Recurrent 27 /0612023
Totrl

b. Development Grants
Indicaie the FY to
which the amounts
relate

Bank Statement
Date

25,000,000.00 N/ADevelopmenl 10/212021

t2/10/2022 2,612,560.00Development
Total 27,612,560

c. Direct Payments

Amoun! (KS!s)

lndicale the FY to
which the amounts
relate

Bank Statement
Date

N/A N/A N/A
N/AN/A N/A

NiA
xxxTotal

d Donor Receipts
lndicate the FY to
which the arnounts

rclate
Bank Statement
Date A,nounl (KShs)

N/A N/AN/A N/A
N/A N/AN/A N/A

N/AN/A NlAN/A
xxxlotal

IIII

Sign

N/A
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A-PPENDIX IV: RECORDING OF TRANSFf,RS FROM OTHER GOVERNMENT
ENTITIES

Name S.qle.i&sr.!.br.ahi!r.nRaba

Signature

Date 30/06/2_023

MANDERA COT,INTY
GOVERNMENT 8/7 /2022

Recurrenl
4,397,886.00

MANDERA COUNTY
COVERNMENT 12/tol2022

Development
6,000,m0.00

MANDERA COUNTY
GOVERNMENT 2/11/2022

Recurrent
14,000,000.m

MANDERA COUNTY
COVERNMENT 28/t2/2022

Recurrcnl
10,000,000.00

MANDERA COUNTY
GOVERNMENT 10/2/2023

Development
2 5,000,000.00

MANDERA COUNTY
GOVERNMENT 3/4/2023

Recurrenl
2,442,300_OO

MANDERA COUNTY
GOVERNMENT 11/s/2023

Recurrenl
13,000,000.m

MANDERA COLNTY
COVERNMENT 27 /06/2023

Recuftent
10,000,000

Total 85,240,186

45
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